NUREG/CR-5594 EGG-2603

Radiation Degradation in EPICOR-II Ion Exchange Resins

Prepared by J. W. McConnell, Jr., D. A. Johnson, R. D. Sanders, Sr.

Idaho National Engineering Laboratory EG&G Idaho, Inc.

Prepared for U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission

> 9010230109 900930 PDR NUREG PDR CR-5594 R PDR

AVAILABILITY NOTICE

Availability of Reference Materials Cited in NRC Publications

Most documents cited in NRC publications will be available from one of the following sources:

- 1. The NRC Public Document Room, 2120 L Street, NW, Lower Level, Washington, DC 20555
- 2. The Superintendent of Documents, U.S. Government Printing Office, P.O. Box 37082, Washington, DC 20013-7082
- 3. The National Technical Information Service, Springfield, VA 22161

Although the listing that follows represents the majority of documents cited in NRC publications, it is not intended to be exhaustive.

Referenced documents available for inspection and copying for a fee from the NRC Public Document Room include NRC correspondence and internal NRC memoranda; NRC Office of inspection and Enforcement bulletins, circulars, information notices, inspection and investigation notices; Licensee Event Reports; vendor reports and correspondence; Commission papers; and applicant and licensee documents and correspondence.

The following documents in the NUREG series are available for purchase from the GPO Sales Program: formal NRC staff and contractor reports, NRC-sponsored conference proceedings, and NRC booklets and brochures. Also available are Regulatory Guides, NRC regulations in the Code of Federal Regulations, and Nuclear Regulatory Commission Issuances.

Documents available from the National Technical Information Service include N'REG series reports and technical reports prepared by other federal agencies and reports prepared by the ornic Energy Commission, forerunner agency to the Nuclear Regulatory Commission.

Documents available from public and special technical libraries includ a open distature items, such as books, journal and periodical articles, and transactions. Federal Register r iss, federal and state legislation, and congressional reports can usually be obtained from these 301 arts.

Documents such as theses, dissertations, foreign reports i translations, and non-NRC conference proceedings are available for purchase from the organization sponsoring the publication cited.

Single copies of NRC draft reports are available free, to the extent of supply, upon written request to the Office of Information Resources Management, Distribution Section, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Washington, DC 20555.

Copies of industry codes and standards used in a substantive manner in the NRC regulatory process are maintained at the NRC Library, 7920 Norfolk Avenue, Bethesda, Maryland, and are svaliable there for reference use by the public. Codes and standards are usually copyrighted and may be purchased from the originating organization or, if they are American National Standards, from the American National Standards Institute, 1430 Broadway, New York, NY 10018.

DISCLAIMER NOTICE

This report was prepared as an account of work sponsored by an agency of the United States Government. Neither the United States Government nor any agency thereof, or any of their employees, makes any warranty, expressed or implied, or assumes any legal liability of responsibility for any third party's use, or the results of such use, of any information, apparatus, product or process disclosed in this report, or represents that its use by such third party would not infringe privately owned rights.

NUREG/CR-5594 EGG-2603 RW

Radiation Degradation in EPICOR-II Ion Exchange Resins

Manuscript Completed: August 1990 Date Published: September 1990

Prepared by J. W. McConnell, Jr., D. A. Johnson, R. D. Sanders, Sr.

Idaho National Engineering Laboratory Managed by the U.S. Department of Energy

EG&G Idaho, Inc. P.O. Box 1625 Idaho Falls, ID 83415

Prepared for Division of Engineering Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission Washington, DC 20555 NRC FIN A6876 Under DOE Contract No. DE-AC07-76ID01570

PREVIOUS REPORTS IN SERIES

0

- *** ***

.π s≋∙

3

all and a second

¥ä

4 67 17

5

200

襧

NUREG/CR-4150, "EPICOR-II Resin Degradation-Results from First Resin Samples of Pr-8 and PF-20," EG&G Idaho, Inc., July 1985.

NUREG/CR-4608, "EPICOR-II Resin Degradation-Results from Second Resin Samples of PF-8 and PF-20," EG&G Idaho, Inc., October 1986.

ABSTRACT

The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigation Program funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and physical conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilters. Those prefilters were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclear Power Station after the March 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Idaho Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results and analyses of three samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compared with baseline data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determine the extent of degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Results also are compared with those of other researchers.

> FIN No. A6876-Low-Level Waste Data Base Development-EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigation.

SUMMARY

v

The March 28, 1979 accident at Three Mile Island Unit 2 released approximately 560,000 gal of contaminated water to the Auxiliary and Fuel Handling Buildings. The water was decontaminated using a three-stage demineralization system called EPICOR-II, containing organic and inorganic ion exchange media. The first stage was designated the prefilter, and the second and third stages were called demineralizers. Fifty EPICOR-II prefilters with high concentrations of radionuclides were transported to the Idaho National Engineering Laboratory (INEL) for interim storage before final disposal at the commercial disposal facility in the State of Washington. During the interim storage period at INEL, research was conducted on materials from those EPICOR-II prefilters. This study addresses the condition of the organic ion exchange resins in those prefilters.

Resin cores were obtained from prefilters PF-8 and -20 during a first, second, and third sampling using special tools developed for that purpose. Removal of samples from the coring tools and preparation of those samples are discussed. A series of characterization tests were performed on the resins to determine if degradation due to radiation had occurred during interim storage. Those tests included American Society for Testing Materials (ASTM) procedures, infrared spectroscopy, gas chromatography, high performance liquid chromatography, scanning electron microscopy,

supercritical fluids chromatograph, barium chloride precipitation, inductively coupled plasma - atomic emission spectroscopy, and gamma-ray spectroscopy. Details of test methodologies and results are described.

Analysis comparing test results of the first, second, and third samplings of resins from EPICOR-II prefilters PF-8 and -20 and unirradiated resins obtained from Epicor, Inc., show that resin degradation is continuing in the EPICOR-II resins examined. The mechanism of degradation in those EPICOR-II prefilters is compared with earlier work and found to be consistent with those findings. The strong acid cation resins (divinylbenzene, polystyrene based structure) are losing effective cross-linking and functional groups, as well as experiencing a decrease in total exchange capacity as the absorbed radiation dose increases. The phenolic cation resins (phenol-formaldehyde based structure) show a loss of effective cross-linking and oxidation of the polymer chain. The analysis of the resins from the third sampling identify that very significant degradation has occurred.

While the organic ion exchange media (resins) from these EPICOR-II prefilters have suffered significant physical changes, it is shown that the contained radionuclides remain within the resin bed. The acceptability of EPICOR-II prefilters for disposal in high integrity containers at a commercial disposal site is confirmed.

CONTENTS

ABSTRACT	iäi
SUMMARY	v
ACRONYMS	in
INTRODUCTION	1
MATERIALS AND METHODS	2
EPICOR-II Prefilters	2
Coring	2
Measuring Radiation Doses in the Resin Beds	4
Gamma-Scanning of Resin Cores	4
Sampling	6
Sample Preparation	9
Characterization of Unirradiated and Irradiated Resins	10
ASTM Tests Infrared Spectroscopy Gas Chromatography Liquid Chromatography Supercritical Fluid Chromatograph Barium Chloride Precipitation for Determination Sulfonic Acid Groups Inductive Coupled Plasma-Atomic Emission Spectroscopy for the Determination of Sulfur (ICP-AES) Scanning Electron Microscopy	11 12 13 14 14 14 14
Gamma-Ray Spectroscopy	15
RESULTS AND INTERPRETATION	16
ASTM Tests	17
Infrared Spectroscopy	22
Gas, Liquid, and Supercritical Fluids Chromatography	22
Determination of Sulfate	22
Scanning Electron Microscopy	23
Gamma-Ray Spectroscope	29
Physical Observations	29

.

Synopsis of Results	29
DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS	32
REFERENCES	34

1

2

4

FIGURES

1.	Schematic (isometric and full section) of an EPICOR-II prefilter	3
2.	Results of full-depth gross gamma measurements taken inside the hole created in the resin bed by the coring of EPICOR-II prefilter PF-8 during second sampling	4
3.	Results of full-depth gross gamma measurements taken inside the hole created in the resin bed by the coring of EPICOR-II prefilter PF-20 during second sampling	5
4.	Results of isotopic spectral measurements of the resin core from EPICOR-II prefilter PF-20 during second sampling at an elevation of 29.25 in. (location of highest radioactivity)	6
5.	Isotopic (Cs-137) gamma-scan over the length of the resin core from EPICOR-II prefilter PF-8, showing locations where the resin samples were removed	7
б.	Isotopic (Cs-137) gamma-scan over the length of the resin core from EPICOR-II prefilter PF-20, showing locations where the resin samples were removed	7
7.	Photograph of resin cores with shutters removed from EPICOR-II prefilters PF-20, (upper sample) and PF-8 (lower sample)	8
8.	Schematic of apparatus used to collect resin samples from the coring tools	9
9.	Schematic of apparatus used to elute radionuclides from theresin samples	10
10.	Schematic of standard ASTM apparatus used for pretreatment of resins and backwashed and settled density test	11
11.	Schematic of standard ASTM apparatus for determining salt splitting and total exchange	
	capacities	13
12.	Change in total exchange capacity with increase in radiation dose	21
13.	SEM photomicrograph of unirradiated Epicor, Inc. strong acid cation resin at 12 magnification	23
14.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-20 at 20 magnification	24
15.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-20, showing a closeup of a damaged resin bead at 100 magnification	24
16.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1 at 15 magnification, showing numerous damaged resin heads	26
17.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1 at 100 magnification, showing a typical resin bead fracture	25

×.

18.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1, showing a closeup of one unusually damaged bead at 100 magnification	26
19.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF8#3, at 15 magnification	26
20	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF8#3 showing one resin bead which appears to have softened and dimpled at 100 magnification	27
21.	SEM photomicrograph of unirradiated Epicor, Inc. phenolic cation resin at 100 magnification	27
22.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II phenolic cation resin sample PF8#2 at 18 magnification	28
23.	SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II phenolic cation resin sample PF8#2, showing a closeup of one cracked resin particle at 50 magnification	28

38 22

TABLES

1.	Calculated radiation doses to resins from EPICOR-II prefilters PF-8 and -20	5
2.	Radioactivity of resin soak, rinse, and acid composite samples in first, second, and third samplings	16
3.	Results of ASTM tests on irradiated and unirradiated ion exchange resins-third sampling	18
4.	ASTM test parameter changes of PF-8 and -20 strong acid cation resins versus unirradiated Epicor, Inc., strong acid cation resin (first, second, and third samplings)	19
5.	Sulfate determined in aqueous solutions from resins by inductively coupled plasma-atomic emission spectroscopy-third sampling	22
б.	Cesium measured in aqueous solution from resins-third sampling	29
7.	Synopsis of results from analysis of EPICOR-II irradiated resin samples PF-8#1, PF-8#2, PF-8#3, and PF-20 from the first, second, and third samplings	30

1

ACRONYMS

5

.

1

102

2 C.

ASTM	American Society of Testing Materials	INEL	Idaho National Engineering Laboratory
BCL	Battelle Columbus Laboratories	IR	Infrared spectroscopy
BNL	Brookhaven National Laboratory	NRC	Nuclear Regulatory Commission
DOE	Department of Energy		
GC	Gas chromatography	SEM	Scanning electron microscope
HPLC	High performance liquid chromatography	SFC	Super critical fluid chromatograph
ICP-AES	Inductively Coupled Plasma-Atomic Emission Spectroscopy for the Determi-	TEC	Total exchange capacity
	nation of Sulfur	TRA	Test Reactor Area

RADIATION DEGRADATION IN EPICOR-II ION EXCHANGE RESINS, FINAL REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The March 28, 1979 accident at Three Mile Island Unit 2 released approximately 560,000 gal of contaminated water to the Auxiliary and Fuel Handling Buildings. That water was decontaminated using a demineralization system called EPICOR-II developed by Epicor, Inc. The contaminated water was cycled through three stages of organic and inorganic ion exchange media. The first stage of the system was designated the prefilter, and the second and third stages were called demineralizers. After the filtration process, the ion exchange media in 50 of the prefilters contained radionuclides in concentrations greater than those established for disposal of similar materials as low-level wastes. Those prefilters were transported to the Idaho National Engineering Laboratory (INEL) for interim storage before final disposal. A special overpack, or high-integrity container, was developed during that storage period for use in disposing of the prefilters.

During the interim storage period at INEL, continuing research was conducted by EG&G Idaho, Inc., on materials from those EPICOR-II prefilters, under the EPICOR and Waste Research and Disposition Program funded by the U.S. Department of Energy (DOE). That work now is directed by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) as part of the Low-Level Waste Data Base Development-EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigation Program. Studies are being conducted on: (a) organic ion exchange resins from selected prefilters and (b) corrosion-resistant behavior of the phenolic-coated steel walls of the prefilter liners.¹ The resins are being examined to measure degradation and tests are being performed to characterize solidified ion exchange media. The degradation studies are directed to determining the acceptability of EPICOR-II prefilters for disposal in high integrity

containers at the commercial disposal site at Hanford, Washington, by identifying: (a) degradation effects on the ion-exchange resins caused by contained radiation (b) and possible release of contained radionuclides from the ion exchange resins.

Degradation studies traditionally have been conducted using resins irradiated by external sources, such as a reactor core or Co-60.² The gamma dose, provided by an external source, simulates a dose that would be received from radionuclides retained on the resin matrix by ion exchange sites. Modes of degradation do not differ between external and internal radiation; but Reference 2 states that internal radiation causes more extensive damage than external radiation, presumably from such sources as short-range, highenergy beta radiation. The organic resin of EPICOR-II prefilters had been contained in liners for approximately nine years and experienced internal radiation doses above 10⁷ rad.

This report discusses the resin degradation studies conducted on the third samples of organic ion exchange resins removed from the EPICOR-II prefilters (PF-8 and -20) and compares results with findings from studies of the first and second sampling, as described in References 3 and 4. As part of the EPICOR and Waste Research and Disposition Program, 46 prefilters were disposed of at a commercial disposal facility. Four prefilters used in the NRC studies were stored in temporary storage casks outside the Hot Shop of Test Area North Building 607 (TAN-607) at the INEL. The third sampling will be the final examination of this study. The remaining four prefilters were disposed at the Radioactive Waste Management Complex, the INEL disposal facility.^{5,6}

materials and methods

EPICOR-II Prefilters

EPICOR-II prefilter liners are 4-ft-diameter by 4-ft-high cylinders with 1/4-in.-thick bottoms (Figure 1). The liners are of welded construction using ASTM Type A-36 carbon steel. The internal and external surfaces are painted with Phenoline* 386 coating. Each liner contains about 30 ft of ion exchange media. Several types of media (i.e., cation, anion, mixed bed, and/or zeolite) were placed in each liner in lavers. Of the prefilters received at INEL, 39 contained both organic ion exchange resins and inorganic zeolite; 11 contained organic resins only. During the filtration process, a perforated, four-branch influent manifold distributed contaminated water over the ion exchange media, while the effluent was drawn off from the bottom of the prefilter through a porous, multibranched return manifold. Both manifolds are piped to a manifold plate on top of the liner. A vent port and adaptors for liquid-level detectors also are located on the manifold plate. A manway is located beside the manifold plate on the top of the liner, through which ion exchange media were loaded into the liner. Removal of resins from the prefilter also was accomplished through that manway, using coring tools.

Throughout this report, the following nomenclature applies to various sizes and configurations of materials removed from EPICOR-II prefilters for examination:

- Resin Core—one core removed from each prefilter PF-8 and -20, using coring tools
- Resin Samples—100-mL volumes of resin removed from the cores [three samples from PF-8 (designated PF-8#1, PF-8#2, and PF-8#3) and one from PF-20 (designated PF-20)]
- Aliquots—small quantities obtained from the resin samples.

To develop baseline data for resin degradation studies, unirradiated ion exchange resins representative of those in the prefilters were obtained from Epicor, Inc. The unirradiated resins were identified by functional group, exchangeable species, and matrix (e.g., sulfonic acid, strong acid cation, and styrene). They were characterized for comparison with the resins from PF-8 and-20. Studies at Brookhaven National Laboratory in New York, confirmed that this comparative method was best suited to the analysis of the EPICOR-II ion exchange materials (Reference 7). Both he irradiated and unirradiated resins were examined using similar techniques. The resins were pretreated so as to put the resins in a standard form for comparison purposes. Then, ASTM tests were used to determine exchange capacity, density, and moisture content.8 Infrared spectroscopy (IR) was used to identify functional groups (e.g., sulfonic acid, phenolic, and quaternary ammonium) and matrix material (styrene and phenol). Vapor phase chromatograph was used to analyze the rinse, soak, and acid rinse solutions from the ASTM tests qualitatively for styrene, divinylbenzene, or other soluble organic species. High-performance liquid chromatography was used to look for other possible soluble organic products. The third sampling included super-critical fluid chromatography, which should allow the detection of macro molecules (fragments of the resin polymer). Inductive coupled plasma-atomic emission spectroscopy was used for determining sulfonic acid groups and scanning electron microscopy for determining the physical condition of the resins. Gammaray spectroscopy was used to determine radionuclides in aqueous solutions from the third sampling.

Coring

Resin cores were removed remotely from prefilters PF-8 and -20 during the third coring in 1989, using coring equipment based on a design developed at Battelle Columbus Laboratories (BCL) and modified for use at the INEL.⁹ PF-8 (containing organic resins) and PF-20 (containing organic resins and zeolite) were selected for the resin degradation studies because they are highly loaded representatives (1,400 and 2,000 Ci, respectively) of the two types of EPICOR-II prefilters. Water was added to the top of the prefilter beds during coring to provide lubrication for the coring tools, which would not enter the beds more than a few inches without it. Between 25 and 50 gal of water were added to each bed during coring operations. The coring equipment was described in Reference 3.

The resin core contained layers of ion exchange media in the same relative positions as in the prefilter bed. The void in the coring tool above the upper level of the resin was filled with unirradiated zeolite before lowering the tool to the horizontal position. The zeolite filler prevented shifting of the resin during transport. The coring tools were placed horizontally in separate casks

a. Trade name of the Carboline Company





3

e *: 6 56 and transported from the TAN-607 Hot Shop to a hot cell at the Test Reactor Area (TRA) for gammascanning and removal of resin samples.

Measuring Radiation Doses in the Resin Bods

Full-depth gross gamma scans were made in the prefilter resin beds after removing cores during each of the three samplings. Those scans were used to estimate the total integrated radiation dose absorbed by the resins. Measurements were made with a Victoreen Model 510 roentgen rate meter, which used an air-equivalent ionization chamber radiation detector (Model 607) and associated current measuring electrometer. The task was accomplished by remotely lowering the radiation detector down the 2-by-3-in. holes created in the resin beds during the coring process. The averages of the actual gamma scan measurements made during insertion and retraction of the detector at each location during the second sampling are given in Figures 2 and 3. Radiation measurements made at the elevations of interest were used with the calculations of maximum cumulative doses^a to estimate the total integrated beta dose. The calculated beta dose and the measured gamma dose for each resin sample location are listed in Table 1. As would be expected, the total doses are increasing with time. These final total doses have been adjusted from previous values upon inclusion of the information obtained during the third sampling. There has been no appreciable shift in these curves toward the bottom of the bed which indicates little or no movement of radionuclides through the beds.

Gamma-Scanning of Resin Cores

The full-length resin cores from PF-8 and -20 first and second samplings were scanned in the coring tool using a Ge(Li) gamma-ray detector (with associated electronics and a 0.5-in.-wide by 1.0-in.-high collimator) to determine axial gross gamma activity versus

1

a. D. E. Martz, Calculated Cumulative Radiation Doses to EPICOR Prefilter Resins, private communication, EG&G Idaho, Inc., April 1985.



Figure 2. Results of full-depth gross gamma measurements taken inside the hole created in the resin bed by the coring of EPICOR-II prefilter PF-8 during second sampling.



Figure 3. Results of full-depth gross gamma measurements taken inside the hole created in the resin bed by the coring of EPICOR-II prefilter PF-20 during second sampling.

Sample	Date Prefilter Removed from Service at TMI-2	Date Resin Cored	Measured Activity at Location of Sample in Prefilter (R/min)	Total Gamma Radiation Dose (rad)	Total Beta Radiation Dose (rad)	Total Radiation Dose (rad)
PF-8#1	18 Dec 79	4 Oct 83	23.7	47 x 107	18 - 107	66-107
PF-8#2	18 Dec 79	4 Oct 83	15.4	3.1 × 107	12 - 107	0.0 x 10 ⁷
PF-20	13 March 80	11 Oct 83	20.0	3.8 x 10 ⁷	1.3 x 10 ⁷	5.1 x 10 ⁷
PF-8#1	18 Dec 79	10 Oct 85	21.4	6.5 x 10 ⁷	2.5 x 10 ⁷	90×107
PF-8#2	18 Dec 79	10 Oct 85	15.2	4.6 x 10 ⁷	1.8 x 107	64 + 107
PF-8#3	18 Dec 79	10 Oct 85	20.3	6.3 x 10 ⁷	2.4×10^{7}	88 - 107
PF-20	13 March 80	14 Oct 85	14.0	4.9 x 10 ⁷	1.7 x 10 ⁷	6.6 x 10 ⁷
PF-8#1	18 Dec 79	25 May 89	21.2*	10.5 x 10 ⁷	4.0 x 10 ⁷	14.5 x 107
PF-8#2	18 Dec 79	25 May 89	13.5*	6.7 x 10 ⁷	2.6 x 107	92 + 107
PF-8#3	18 Dec 79	25 May 89	19.8ª	98 x 107	37 × 107	13.5 - 107
PF-20	13 March 80	31 May 89	13.2ª	6.4 x 10 ⁷	2.3 x 10 ⁷	8.7 x 10 ⁷

Calculated radiation doses to resins from EPICOR-II prefilters PF-8	and -2	20
---	--------	----

a. Calculated from first and second sampling data.

" ---

ŝ

and the second sec

1

length of the core.¹⁰ The axial locations of highest radionuclide activity for the resin cores were determined using those scans. Then, isotopic spectral measurements were made at the locations of highest activity during the first sampling from PF-20, as shown in Figure 4. There were two radionuclides having measurable concentrations detected by the gamma spectral scans, Cs-134 and Cs-137. It is noted that antimony has been found in these resins, but was not seen in the spectral scan (Figure 4) due to masking by facility background count. Based on that information from the first sampling, isotopic gamma-ray intensities for Cs-134 and Cs-137 were measured as a function of distance along the resin cores. The results for Cs-137 are shown in Figures 5 and 6 for PF-8 and -20 respectively. The resin samples were collected from or near those regions of highest radionuclide loading. However, it is noted that the PF-20 sample was not collected from the region in the organic resin of highest radionuclide loading (near the bottom of the core), but rather the sample was removed from the resin adjacent to the zeolite. In that prefilter, the zeolite contained by far the highest concentration of radionuclides and thus produced an integrated dose much higher than that seen at the bottom of the resin core (see Figure 6). Because zeolites have not been used in routine ion exchange service at commercial nuclear power plants, the scope of this study has been limited

18

to the degradation of organic ion exchange resins; therefore, only organic resin samples were removed from the cores.

Sampling

At TRA, each resin-filled coring tool was transferred from its cask into the hot cell for remote removal of resin samples. The shutter of the coring tool was withdrawn to expose the ion exchange media (resin). The cores of PF-8 and -20 with shutters removed are pictured in Figure 7. Composite figures of the cores showing ion exchange media layers were shown in Reference 3 and 4. It should be noted that some smearing of material from one layer into another occurred when each shutter was inserted and withdrawn. That smearing required careful removal of the mixed surface material to expose unmixed resin near the center of the core, for the unmixed material was the target for collection.

The resin samples were obtained from the cores, using a vacuum pump and partially water-filled graduated glass column (See Figure 8). One end of a flexible rubber tube was attached near the top of the glass column and the other end was connected to a vacuum pump outside the hot cell. A segment of











had





Figure 7. Photograph of resin cores with shutters removed from EPICOR-II prefilters PF-20 (upper sample) and PF-8 (lower sample).



Figure 8. Schematic of apparatus used to collect resin samples from the coring tools.

rubber tubing was attached from the top of the glass column to a stainless steel tube to form a wand (Figure 8). With the vacuum pump operating, the wand was positioned with a master-slave manipulator over the target resin in such a way that the resin was drawn into the wand, thence into the column. Sample sizes of 100 mL were collected. Three samples were collected from the PF-8 core, two styrene cation resin (PF-8#1 and PF-8#3) and one phenolic cation resin (PF-8#2). A sample of styrene cation resin was collected from PF-20. No anion resin sample was collected from either core because of the lower radionuclide content of the anion exchange resin and the lower radiation dose as shown in Figures 2 and 3 (resulting in much less degradation than in the cation exchange resins).

Sample Preparation

The radiation levels in the PF-8 and -20 samples were of such intensity that work performed on those resins would have to have been done within a hot cell environment. That type of environment would have made the characterization and analysis of the resin samples very costly and time consuming. It had been shown by tests performed at INEL on unirradiated resins that an Epicor, Inc., resin could be stripped of 99% of its cations, using a 10% hydrochloric acid solution.* Based on that information, the radionuclides (cations) were eluted from the PF-8 and -20 resin samples. This technique is based on normal resin industry regeneration procedures and will not contribute to degradation of the ion exchange resins.

As described in the previous section, samples were removed from the coring tools, drawn into a 1 in.-dia. by 18-in.-high ion exchange column containing 50 mL of deionized water (see Figure 8), and allowed to stand 24 hours in the water-filled column. Each ion exchange column then was reconfigured, as shown in Figure 9. The distilled water soak was removed through the shutoff valve at the bottom of the column and retained for gas, liquid and supercritical fluid chromatography analysis. The various chromatography techniques were used for determining the presence of soluble organic resin degradation products. The deionized water soak was analyzed for the presence of any functional group components, such as sulfonic acid, which had been dissociated from the resin. All resin samples were rinsed two times with deionized water, which was added by the pump through

a. R. D. Sanders, Bench Study of Batch Elution of Cation Resins, private communication, EG&G Idaho, Inc.



Figure 9. Schematic of apparatus used to elute radionuclides from the resin samples.

the tubing at the top of the column. It was very difficult to get any kind of reasonable flow through the columns containing samples PF-8#1, PF-8#3, and PF-20 so these three samples were rinsed out of the columns and rinsed with deionized water. The resulting solution was decanted off of the resin samples. The resins samples were then returned to their respective ion exchange columns. The decant solutions were saved for soluble organic and functional group analysis. The deionized water rinse also was saved for chromatography analysis and functional group tests.

A solution of 10% hydrochloric acid was pumped through each resin sample at a rate of 100 mL/min, using the configuration shown in Figure 9. That procedure continued until 60 sample volumes (the amount determined to remove 99% of the cations) or 6 L of acid were pumped through the resins. Representative quantities of that acid rinse were collected for later chromatography and functional group analysis.

The deionized water soak, deionized water rinse, decant rinses, and hydrochloric acid rinse reduced the radionuclide content of the resins and made it possible to remove the samples from the hot cell and perform the analyses in a Type II fume hood equipped with a high-efficiency particulate air filter on the outlet duct. Each of the liquid samples was monitored for radioactivity upon removal from the hot cell. Those measurements were used to maintain radiological control and also as an indication of resin degradation.

Characterization of Unirradiated and Irradiated Resins

Several analytical methods are needed to characterize a specific ion exchange resin. Those methods include the following:

- ASTM Procedures for the Physical and Chemical Properties of Particulate Ion Exchange Resins¹¹
- Infrared spectroscopy (used in the first and second samplings)
- Gas chromatography
- Liquid chromatography
- Supercritical fluid chromatography (third sampling only)
- Barium chloride precipitation for determination of sulfonic acid groups (first and second sampling)

- Inductively coupled plasma-atomic emission spectroscopy for the determination of sulfonic acid groups (third sampling)
- Gamma ray spectroscopy (third sampling)
- Scanning electron microscopy.

The above analytical methods were used to characterize the samples from PF-8 (strong acid cation and phenolic cation) and PF-20 (strong acid cation) and the unirradiated Epicor, Inc., resins (strong acid cation and phenolic cation).

ASTM Tests. ASTM procedures were used to determine chemical and physical conditions of the ion exchange resins. Results from analysis of irradiated resins (from the first, second, and third samplings) were compared with results from unirradiated resins to determine if degradation had occurred. Those results are presented in the "Results and Interpretation" section of this report. The following ASTM tests^{*} were

a. The tests were preformed in accordance with the ASTM standards and deviations are within allowable limits of those standards. used for the strong acid cation and phenolic cation exchange resins:

- Pretreatment (ASTM D2187-77 Method A)
- Water retention capacity (ASTM D2187-77 Method B)
- Backwashed and settled density (ASTM D2187-77 Method C)
- Salt-splitting capacity (ASTM D2187-77 Method E)
- Total exchange capacity (ASTM D2187-77 Method F).

Pretreatment The pretreatment phase of the ASTM procedure was used to convert ion exchange resins to one standard form (usually the sodium form for cation resins). The standard form provides a baseline from which the other ASTM tests can be performed. An ion exchange column apparatus (See Figure 10) was set up and the resin sample added to the



Figure 10. Schematic of standard ASTM apparatus used for pretreatment of resins and backwashed and settled density test.

column. The resin was backwashed with deionized water to remove any extraneous particles. The resin was rinsed with a 10% hydrochloric acid solution to remove any existing cations, converting the resin to the hydrogen form. From the hydrogen form, the resin was converted to the sodium form by rinsing with a solution of 100 g of sodium chloride per liter of deionized water at a rate of 31 mL/min for 1 hour. The resin was then in a standard form for analysis.

Water Retention Capacity. Testing of ion exchange resins for water retention capacity indicates the porosity of the resin. The porosity of a resin is dependent on the amount of effective cross-linking. The higher the water retention capacity, the lower the effective cross-linking. In the case of the PF-8 and -20 resins, the water retention capacity is an indication of the amount of divinylbenzene cross-linking for the strong acid resins. That relationship cannot be quantified because of the proprietary nature of the EPICOR-Il resins. Some loss of effective cross-linking occurs before the release of radionuclides.12 The test consisted of drying known amounts of pretreated PF-8 and -20 styrene and phenolic cation resins in an oven at 110 + 5°C for a minimum of 18 + 2 hours. The differences in weights before and after drying were used to calculate the water retention capacity. The test was performed in triplicate, and the average was calculated.

Backwashed and Settled Density. The backwashed and settled density test was developed to determine changes in effective cross-linking between new and used resins. The density is directly proportional to the amount of effective cross-linking in the resin. As previously noted, some loss of effective cross-linking occurs before radionuclides are released (Reference 12). The test consisted of backwashing a known amount of resin with deionized water for 10 min. The resin was allowed to settle and the volume was recorded, Then, the density was calculated based on a known weight of resin in grams to a known volume of water in milliliters. The test was performed in triplicate and the average was calculated.

Salt-Splitting Capacity. The salt-splitting capacity test is designed to show only the number of sulfonic acid groups contained in a cation ion exchange resin. A decrease in salt-splitting capacity would show a loss of functional sulfonic acid groups. The loss of sulfonic acid groups would allow the release of those radionuclides tied to those functional groups. Phenolic, carboxylic acid, and phosphonic acid functional groups also will exhibit, to some degree, salt-splitting capacity. The test assembly apparatus is depicted in Figure 11. The resin was converted to the hydrogen form by flowing 10% hydrochloric acid solution over the resin at a rate of 31 mL/min. The hydrogen form cation resin was eluted with a 50 g/L sodium chloride solution at a rate of 31 mL/min. The eluted sodium chloride solution was titrated with standard 0.10 N sodium hydroxide solution to determine the amount of bydrogen exchanged in the elution process. The test was performed in triplicate and the average was calculated.

Total Exchange Capacity. The total exchange capacity test is used to determine exchange capacity of cation ion exchange resins that contain functional groups in addition to, or different from, sulfonic acid functional groups. A decrease in total exchange capacity indicates the loss of functional groups and subsequent loss of radionuclides. Different functional groups include phenolic, carboxylic acid, and phosphonic acid. The apparatus shown in Figure 11 was assembled, and a 10% bydrochloric acid solution was eluted through the resin to convert it to the hydrogen form. The resin was transferred to a separate flask containing 200 mL of standard 0.10 N sodium hydroxide solution. The solution also contained 50 g of sodium chloride per L. The resin was allowed to equilibrate in the solution for a minimum of 16 hours. An aliquot of the solution was collected and titrated with standard 0.10 N hydrochloric acid solution. The adsorption of hydroxide ion by the resin in the presence of sodium chloride is proportional to the total exchange capacity. The test was performed in triplicate, and the average was calculated.

Infrared Spectroscopy. Infrared spectroscopy (IR) involves identifying the rotational and vibrational motion of atoms in a molecule induced by infrared radiation. The multiplicity of vibrations occurring simultaneously produces a highly complex absorption spectrum. The spectrum is uniquely characteristic of the functional groups comprising the molecules and the overall configuration of the atoms within a molecule. Infrared spectroscopy can therefore be used to positively identify a pure organic molecule, IR was used to determine if the styrene and phenolic cation resins in PF-8 and -20 were the same as the unirradiated styrene cation and phenolic cation resins obtained from Epicor, Inc. IR spectra of the unirradiated Epicor, Inc. resins were compared with IR spectra from PF-8 and -20 resins to determine if any major changes in molecular structure of the PF-8 and -20 resins had occurred because of the high internal radiation dose. Changes can be seen by a shift in peak



4 0291

Figure 11. Schematic of standard ASTM apparatus for determining salt splitting and total exchange capabilities.

location or major decrease in intensity. A change in molecular structure would indicate scission of the polymer backbone and eventual release of radionuclides.

The resin samples were dried at 110°C to remove excess moisture and ground in a porcelain mortar and pestle to a size of less than 80 mesh. Then, 10 mg of resin were added to 100 mg of dried potassium bromide (KBr) and placed in a pellet press. A compressive force was applied to the pellet press and a pellet containing the resin was obtained for IR scanning. The KBr pellet was placed into the sample beam of a Perkin Elmer Model 1430 infrared spectrophotometer and an IR spectrum was obtained. Results of IR analysis are presented in References 3 and 4.

Gas Chromatography. Gas chromatography (GC) is a technique where volatile mixtures of compounds can be separated into pure compounds and detected separately. This is performed by vaporizing a mixture in a heated injection port and then sweeping the gases into a GC column by using an iner; carrier gas such as

helium. The column is contained in a temperature programmable oven. The GC column has an inert packing material coated with a nonvolatile compound. The various components in a mixture are separated by their different solubilities or affinities for the coating on the packing material. The pure compounds are detected sequentially at the end of the column. For organic materials, a flame ionization detector is typically used.

GC columns used in the EPICOR-II resin samples were. 1) A 1/8-in.-O.D. by 6-ft-long column containing 0.34% tetranitrofluorenone as a stationary phase on Carbopack C, 2) A 1/4-in.-O.D. by 6-ft-long column containing 1.0% SP-1240DA on Supelcoport, and 3) A 0.52-mm-I.D. by 30-m-long bonded phase methyl phenyl silicon column (J. W. Scientific DB-5).

The aliquots chosen for GC analysis were the distilled water soak and rinse solutions from the resin samples. All solutions from resin samples were prepared for analysis by extraction with a nonaqueous solvent of either dichloromethane or hexane. The extraction allows water leachable organic analytes to be extracted into the organic phase thus affecting the separation of organic material from the highly radioactive aqueous solutions. Perkin Elmer sigma IB and IIB gas chromatographs equipped with flame ionization detectors were used. Typical GC chromatograms are presented in References 3 and 4.

Liquid Chromatography. High-performance liquid chromatography (HPLC) is a technique by which a liquid or solid organic soluble mixture is separated into its individual components by differences in affinities of the components toward either the liquid (mobile phase) or the functional groups on the stationary phase of a separator column. For the EPICOR-II samples, a 15-cm C-18 (octadecyldimethylsilyl) column was used. The mobile phase was a mixture of acetonitrile and water. All solutions from resin samples were prepared for analysis by extraction with nonaqueous solvent of either dichloromethane or hexane. Aliquots of the extracts of the soak and rinse solutions from PF-8 and -20 were injected into a Kratos HPLC, using a UV-VISIBLE detector, and HPLC chromatograms were obtained. Typical HPLC chromatograms are presented in References 3 and 4.

Supercritical Fluids Chromatograph. Supercritical fluid chromatograph (SFC) was also used in the third sampling. This is a chromatography technique in which the mobile phase has been raised above its critical temperature and pressure. At this point, called the critical point, the mobile phase is neither a gas nor a liquid, but has properties of each. Separations are made based on the different solubilities of analytes by changing the density of the mobile phase. This technique lends itself well for thermally labile compounds and larger molecular weight polymeric materials, which cannot be run using other chromatography techniques. All solutions from resin samples were prepared for analysis by extraction with nonaqueous solvent of either dichloromethane or hexane. Extracted liquid samples for the EPICOR-II resins were analyzed using a 10-m SB-Phenyl-50, 100 micron ID, 0.25 micron film thickness capillary column. Carbon dioxide was used as the mobile phase and an isothermal (100°C) pressure program was run starting at 100 atm. and going to 375 atm. at a rate of 5 atm /min. The results of SFC are included in the "Results and Interpretation" section of the report.

Barium Chloride Precipitation for Determination of Sulfonic Acid Groups. It has been shown that the EPICOR-II cation resins are sulfonic acid, divinylbenzene, styrene type resins (Reference 8). The high internal radiation dose received by those resins could cause loss of the functional groups (sulfonic acid) and release of radionuclides tied to the lost functional groups. The loss of functional groups would cause an increase in the sulfate concentration of the deionized water soak and rinse solutions taken from samples PF-8 and -20 strong acid cation resins.

A 25 mL aliquot was removed from each solution and transferred to a graduated cylinder. Enough barium chloride was added to the solution in the graduated cylinder to ensure an excess amount. The contents of the cylinder were agitated and allowed to stand a minimum of 3 min. A portion of the solution from the graduated cylinder was transferred to a 1-cm (path length) polyethylene sample cell and placed into a visible spectrophotometer set at a wavelength of 420 nm. The absorption values of the solution were obtained and compared with absorption values of standard sulfate solutions. Results of those tests are reported in References 3 and 4.

Inductively Coupled Plasma - Atomic Emission Spectroscopy for the Determination of Sultur (ICP-AES). ICP-AES was used in the third sampling for the measurement of lost sulfonic acid groups from the strong acid cation samples. ICP-AES is a technique based on the measurement of light emitted from excited atoms and ions in a plasma. A solution to be analyzed is nebulized into the spray chambet of the sample introduction system of the ICP-AES. Some of this solution goes through a plasma torch where the sample is desolvated, atomized, and (for some elements) ionized. Outer shell electrons are excited by the high-temperature plasma and when these excited atoms and ions decay back to the ground state electronic configuration they emit photons of radiation characteristic of the elements that are contained in the sample. This light is separated by wavelengths in the monochromator section of the instrument and detected by a photomultiplier tube. The amount of light detected is directly proportional to the concentration of the analyte in the solution.

This technique was used to measure sulfur in soak, deionized water rinse, and elution solutions of the resin samples. Sulfur detected in these samples will be in the form of sulfate, which originates from the loss of the sulfonic acid groups on the strong acid cation resins. By combining the amount of sulfur found in all solutions that contacted each particular resin type, it is possible to get an idea of the total sulfonic acid group loss per resin sample. This information is combined in a table in the "Results and Interpretation" section of this publication.

Scanning Electron Microscopy. In order to determine physical conditions of resin samples from PF-8 and -20, scanning electron microscope (SEM) photomicrographs were obtained of the resins at different magnification levels. The photomicrographs allowed examination of the resins for cracks, bead breakage, bead softening, agglomeration, and so forth. Most types of physical damage of the resins would not allow the release of radionuclides, but the extent of resin degradation can be estimated. Random specimens were extracted from the resin samples after radionuclide elution. Photomicrographs were made of entire specimens and interesting features were examined more closely. The photomicrographs presented in this report and References 3 and 4 represent typical damage observed.

The irradiated resin samples from the third sampling were attached to an SEM planchet by placing a small aliquot of the resin beads on a wet coat of conductive carbon paint. This allowed for conductance of the electrons from the samples and no gold spattering was found necessary (as was performed with previous samples). SEM photomicrographs were obtained of the resins and are included in this report.

Gamma-Ray Spectroscopy. Gamma-ray spectroscopy was used in the third sampling to determine the total amount of Cs-134 and Cs-137 present in the resin samples. Gamma ray spectroscopy is based on the measurement of the characteristic energy of the gamma rays produced during radioactive decay. Each isotope emits gamma rays with specific energies. By using a energy dispersive detector it is possible to identify the species of radioactive material. And by calibration using a reproducible sample geometry, it is possible to perform quantitative analysis.

An aliquot of each of the soak, rinse and elution samples were submitted to the Radiation Measurement Laboratory for counting. The results of this analysis are presented in the "Results and Interpretation" section of this report.

RESULTS AND INTERPRETATION

The unirradiated resins showed no apparent change from previous analyses (References 3, 4, and 8). Because of the age (7 years old) of the unirradiated resins, they might be expected to show some degradation due to aging. The irradiated resins from PF-8 and -20 also would be expected to show some degradation due to age (9 years old).2.12The unirradiated resins showed little or no degradation because of age: therefore, in this study, any degradation of the irradiated resins was presumably from radiation damage and not from other causes. Other causes of degradation would be handling/ mechanical damage and freezing. A review of the history of prefilters PF-8 and -20 shows that the ion exchange media were exposed to subfreezing temperatures while stored at the INEL. However, examinations, using the unirradiated resins to determine freezing damage, have shown that none has occurred. Also, handling was held to a minimum; as a result, damage should have been minimal.

During sample preparation, the resins were soaked and then rinsed in deionized water. It was difficult to produce flow through the resin columns containing samples of PF-8#1, PF-8#3 and PF-20 during rinsing indicating the extent of degradation. Sediment layers were evident in those samples and very low flow was obtained. Those samples were swirled in deionized water to remove sediment and improve flow. Further indication of degradation was shown by the release of radionuclides to the soak and rinse water, as shown in Table 2. The more highly nuclide loaded samples from PF-8 show significant radioactivity in the soak and rinse waters (Table 2). That would not have occurred with undegraded resins. Some measurement differences are noted between samplings; these differences were caused by different elution and measurement techniques.

The soak water from each of the samples was brown in color and sediment was observed in PF-8#1, PF-8#3, and PF-20. This sediment was obviously lighter than the resin as it floated to the surface. It is somewhat difficult to speculate as to the composition of this material. It is not likely that the sediment

Sample	First Sampling Measurement at Contact (mR)	Second Sampling Measurement at Contact (mR)	Third Sampling Measurement at Contact (mR)
PF-8#3-24-h soak*	No resin sample	50 ^d	50 ^d
PF-8#3-Rinse ^b	No resin sample	30 ^d	500,1300,100 ^d
PF-8#3-Acid composite ^c	No resin sample	500 ^d	1000,140 ^d
PF-8#1-24-h soak*	100 ^d	40 ^d	35 ^d
PF-8#1-Rinse ^b	350	30 ^d	200,50 ^d
PF-8#1-Acid composite ^c	800 ^d	500 ^d	2100 ^d
PF-8#2-24-h soak*	45	5	25
PF-8#2Rinse ^b	100	6	10
PF-8#2-Acid composite ^c	80	35	2300
PF-20-24-b soak*	2 ^d	25 ^d	60 ^d
PF-20-Rinse ^b	No sample	15 ^d	500,40 ^d
PF-20-Acid Composite ^c	80 ^d	35d	290

Table 2. Radioactivity of resin soak, rinse and acid composite samples in first, second, and third samplings

a. 24-h soak used a total of 100 mL demineralized water. All 100 mL were counted.

b. Rins: used a total of 100 mL demineralized water. All 100 mL were counted.

c. Acid composite used a total of 5 or 6 L of 10 percent hydrolic acid, 200 mL were counted in the first sampling, 500 mL were counted in the second sampling, and 4000 and 2000 mL were counted in the third sampling.

d. The resin sample was agitated to promote flow of liquid through the sample.

was dirt or particles of zeolite as those materials are more dense than organic resins. It is possible that the sediment was decomposed polymer material. Samples were taken from all deionized water soak, rinse, decant, and elution solutions to look for soluble organic products. And while none were observed, it is possible that this material was not water soluble and therefore not found in any aqueous solutions.

ASTM Tests

Table 3 presents results of the following ASTM test performed on unirradiated and irradiated resins from the third sampling: (a) water retention capacity, (b) backwashed and settled density, (c) salt-splitting capacity, and (d) total exchange capacity.

The differences between ASTM tests performed on unirradiated Epicor, Inc., resins and PF-8#1, PF-8#3, PF-20, strong acid cation resins and PF-8#2 phenolic resin from the third sampling are presented in Table 4. The differences were calculated using measured data shown in Table 3. The results show that resin samples receiving more radiation dose exhibit greater changes in measured properties. Water retention capacities increased with dose; while backwashed and settled density, salt-splitting capacity, and total exchange capacity decreased. Increase in water retention capacity indicates a loss in effective cross-linking, the amount of loss being dependent upon radiation dose (Reference 12).

It is also possible that water retention capacity has increased due to the increase in surface area caused by the extensive resin bead cracking observed in the electron photomicrographs.3.4 A decrease in backwash and settled density also is an indirect indication of loss of effective cross-linking, which can lead to eventual loss of radionuclides (Reference 8). The decrease in saltsplitting capacity of the irradiated resins is an indication of loss of functional groups, sulfonic acid, and accompanying loss of radionuclides (Reference 8). During the second sampling, a slight increase in salt-splitting caracity was observed for PF-20. This would indicate that PF-20 had reached the threshold needed for degradation to begin during the second sampling (References 2 and 12). Furthermore, the higher radiation doses to the PF-8#1, and PF-8#3 resins were the cause for the decreases in total exchange capacities as the radiation damage exceeds the contribution from oxidation. It was found in the review of Reference 2 that oxidation of the polymer chain will cause an initial increase in total exchange capacity followed by a decrease as the radiation damage exceeds that contribution. The decrease in total exchange capacity should result in the loss of radionuclides from the exchange sites.

The ASTM parameters for PF-8#2 show that differences between unirradiated and irradiated phenolic cation resin samples are increasing, similar to the changes observed for the styrene cation resins. There has been a steady increase in the water retention capacity, and a steady decrease in the total exchange capacity (Table 4). This indicates that the resins are degrading. One must be guarded in making conclusions about the phenolic resins in these tests as the samples of PF-8#2 resins were unavoidably contaminated with styrene resins. As much as 19% of the mass of the PF-8#2 sample was actually styrene resin beads.

At the time of the third sampling, all of the resins were showing significant degradation. Table 4 shows the amount of change of ASTM parameters between the unirradiated and irradiated resin samples. This table was prepared to show a history of the three samplings and the amount of change in the degradation of a resin type in relation to radiation dose. There is some difference in the unirradiated resin sample data from the previous two samplings compared with the last sampling. Although the resin sample was 7 years old at the time of testing, most of the deviation in the analysis of the unirradiated resins is attributed to the fact that different analysts performed the work on the third sampling than did the first and second sampling. The ASTM procedure recognized the fact that multi-operator precision is less than that of the single operator. Although age may be a factor in part of the measurement difference, the real significance between the irradiated and the unirradiated resins is the difference in the ratio of unirradiated verse irradiated resin in any one sampling. This difference is largely due to degradation caused by radiation damage. Because all of the irradiated resins and unirradiated resins were tested at the same time, all of the samples were treated identically. This helped eliminate variations caused by handling and experimental condition differences (e.g. humidity on the day that the water retention capacity was performed).

The results of these analyses are graphically presented in Figure 12 where the change in total exchange capacity with increase in radiation dose is presented. Probably the most important characteristic of ion exchange media is total exchange capacity. This figure shows the marked decrease in exchange capacity as the resins received more radiation doses. While there is some separation of the curves for Samples PF-8#1 and #3 from PF-8 #2 (phenolic) and PF-20, the No. 1 and No. 2 sample curves are very close and all four exhibit common shapes. Primary differences in these data were introduced during measurement of radiation doses listed in Table 1.

			Resin Sample			
ASTM Test Parameter	Unirradiated Strong Acid Cation ^b (%)	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation (%)	PF-8#3 Strong Acid Cation (%)	PF-20 Strong Acid Cation (%)	Unirradiated Phenolic Cation Resin (%)	PF-8#2 Phenolic Cation (%)
Water retention capacity	41.48 ± 0.89	56.56 ± 1.21	56.06 <u>+</u> 1.20	48.53 ± 1.04	45.36 ± 0.97	52.78 ± 1.13
Backwashed and settled density (g/mL)	0.837 <u>+</u> 0.011	0.812 ± 0.911	0.829 <u>+</u> 0.011	0.886 ± 0.012	0.665 <u>+</u> 0.009	0.705 ± 0.009
Salt-splitting capacity (meq/g) ^c	5.21 ± 0.96	3.78 ± 0.70	3.83 ± 0.71	4.42 ± 0.82	2.94 ± 0.54	2.17 ± 0.040
Total exchange capacity (meq/g) ^c	6.28 ± 0.97	3.44 ± 0.53	3.64 + 0.56	4.77 ± 0.74	6.42 <u>+</u> 0.99	4.65 ± 0.72

Table 3. Results of ASTM tests on irradiated and unirradiated ion exchange resins-third sampling*

a. The errors associated with the data were experimentally determined. They were calculated as the first standard deviation from the mean.

b. This unirradiated sample was tested at a different time than the other samples.

c. Measured in milliequivalents per gram of dry resin.

ASTM Test Parameter	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation	PF-8#2 Phenelic Cation	PF-8#3 Strong Acid Cation	PF-20#1 Strong
First Sampling				
Estimated radiation dose (Rad)	6.6 x 10 ⁷	4.3 x 10 ⁷	No sample	5.3 x 10 ⁷
Water retention capacity	5% increase	1% increase	No sample	No change
Backwashed and settled density	11% decrease	6% decrease	No sample	13% decrease
Salt splitting capacity	8% decrease	25% increase	No sample	7% decrease
Total exchange capacity	3% decrease	1% decrease	No sample	3% increase
Second Sampling				
Estimated radiation dose (Rad)	9.0 x 10 ⁷	6.4 x 10 ⁷	8.8 x 10 ⁷	6.6 x 10 ⁷
Water retention capacity	13% increase	9% increase	17% increase	7% increase
Backwashed and settled density	13% decrease	3% decrease	19% decrease	1% decrease
Salt splitting capacity	5% decrease	23% increase	7% decrease	1% decrease
Total exchange capacity	5% decrease	6% decrease	2% decrease	No change

Table 4. ASTM test parameter changes of PF-8 and -20 strong acid cation resins versus unirradiated Epicor. Inc., strong acid cation resin (first, second, and third samplings)

Table 4. (continued)

ASTM Test Parameter Third Sampling	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation	PF-8#2 Phenolic Cation	PF-8#3 Strong Acid Cation	PF-20#1 Strong Acid Cation
Estimated radiation dose (Rad)	14.5 x 10 ⁷	9.2 x 10 ⁷	13.5 x 10 ⁷	8.7 x 10 ⁷
Water retention capacity	36% increase	16% increase	35% increase	17% increase
Backwashed and settled density	3% decrease	6% increase	1% decrease	6% increase
Salt splitting capacity	27% decrease	26% decrease	26% decrease	15% decrease
Total exchange capacity	45% decrease	27% decrease	42% decrease	24% decrease



Figure 12. Change in total exchange capacity with increase in radiation dose.

21

0-4196

Infrared Spectroscopy

The infrared spectroscopy performed in the first and second sampling (References 3 and 4) was not used for the third sampling. Infrared spectroscopy is not a very sensitive technique for measuring small changes in a chemical species. Thus the changes such as the loss of sulfonic acid groups, which have been measured by other techniques to be on the order of a few percent of the total amount present, would not be readily apparent on the infrared spectra.

Gas, Liquid, and Supercritical Fluids Chromatography

All the chromatography methods are accepted techniques for detection and analysis of organic materials. Each of the techniques have strengths and weaknesses, but when combined, as was done for these resin analyses, they become a very powerful set of techniques that could detect most organic material present. The sensitivities vary for each of the techniques, but the detection of at least ppm levels of organic material is within the capabilities of each of the techniques.

All of the soak, pre-elution rinse solutions, and decant solutions were tested for organics by first extracting the aqueous solutions with hexanes and then analyzing the extracts with the various chromatography techniques. No detectable organic materials were observed in any of the chromatography experiments. This is an indication that any organic degradation products of the polystyrene divinylbenzene where not soluble in the deionized water solutions and hence not elutracted into the hexanes. One can then make the conclusion that organic decomposition products are expected to stay with the intact resin beads.

Determination of Sulfate

In the first two samplings, a barium chloride precipitation was performed to determine the amount of sulfate present in the soak solutions. In the third sampling, this technique was replaced with ICP-AES. Sulfur was found in the aqueous solutions taken from resin samples (it is assumed that all sulfur is in the form of sulfate). The fact that sulfates are present in substantial concentrations demonstrates that the strong acid cation resins are losing functional groups that are responsible for holding radionuclides on the resins. The results of the ICP-AES analysis for sulfur is presented in Table 5.

The phenolic resins contain no sulfonic acid groups; therefore, the distilled water soak samples should show no sulfate (Reference 8). However, some sulfate was detected in the phenolic sample, PF-8#2, because a small amount of strong acid cation was collected with the phenolic resin due to the proximity of these resins in the prefilter.

It is difficult to determine any trend in sulfonic acid group loss from previous samplings because the actual conditions under which the samples were obtained changed significantly from the first to the third sampling. For example, during processing of the third sampling, it was very difficult to get any of the soak water through the column when the columns flowed relatively well in the first sampling. Also, water added to the prefilter beds during resin coring could have displaced some sulfates. The total sulfur lost from the resins was determined in the third sampling by summing up all of the sulfur present from all of the soak, rinse, and elution solution ICP-AES analyses. Measurements of pH were taken of all solutions and in all cases they were less than 3.

All Aqueous Solutions From Resin Sample No.	(Milligrams SO2 /100 mL Resin Sample)
PF-8#1	25
PF8#2	4
PF-8#3	63
PF-20	37
Unirradiate Resin	0.9

able 5.	Sulfate determined in aqueous solutions from resins by inductively coupled plasm	a-atomic emission
	spectroscopy, third sampling	

Scanning Electron Microscopy

The SEM photomicrograph of the unirradiated strong acid cation resin from Epicor, Inc., is presented in Figure 13. Figures 14 and 15 are photomicrographs of strong acid cation resin from the third sampling of PF-20. Figures 16, 17, and 18 are photomicrographs of strong acid cation resin from PF-8#1. Figures 19 and 20 are photomicrographs of strong acid cation resin from PF-8#3.

In comparison of Figures 14 and 15 with photomicrographs taken from the second sampling (Reference 4) a damaged bead can be observed where none were before. That bead appears to contain a crater also. This appears to correlate with the significant changes in degradation observed this sampling. The strong acid cation resins from PF-8, as in prior samplings, show a lot of bead cracking and breakage. The type of breakage appears different than one would expect for purely mechanical damage. The photomicrographs Figures 16 and 17 show several types of bead fracture similar to those seen in previous examinations (References 3 and 4). The photomicrograph of the PF-8#1 sample in Figure 18 shows concentric ring type cracking not seen before. The photomicrograph of PF-803 in Figure 19 exhibits a number of damaged beads. The bead shown in Figure 20 has been indented by surrounding beads indicating the bead structure has softened. The bead has also fractured. Few of the resins indicate a smooth surface break. Most of the broken resin beads show a ridged surface on the fracture plane (Figures 13, 17, 18, and 20). A number of damaged bead fragments can be seen in the various photomicrographs. It appears that the beads first crack, then eventually fall into fragments. Most of the damage to resin beads observed in the three samplings of EPICOR-II resins has been unusual and not relatable to normal physical damage associated with pump or vacuum transfer or other mechanical damage.

The photomicrographs of PF-8#2 are less dramatic. The unirradiated phenolic resin is shown in Figure 21. Figure 22 and 23 show the irradiated resin sample. One small crack can be observed in Figure 23 and this was the only crack observed in the phenolic resin sample. The phenolic resins have a different chemical backbone structure than the strong acid cation resins which are styrene divinylbenzene, and therefore exhibit a different physical behavior.







Figure 14. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-20 at 20 magnification.



Figure 15. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-20, showing a closeup of a damaged resin bead at 100 magnification.



Figure 16. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1 at 15 magnification, showing numerous damaged resin beads.



Figure 17. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1 at 100 magnification showing a typical resin bead fracture.



Figure 18. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PF-8#1 showing a closeup of one unusually damaged bead at 100 magnification.







Figure 20. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II strong acid cation resin sample PP8#3 showing one resin bead which appears to have softened and dimpled at 100 magnification.



Figure 21. SEM photomicrograph of unirradiated Epicor, Inc. phenolic cation resin at 100 magnification.



Figure 22. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II phenolic cation resin sample PF802 at 18 magnification.



Figure 23. SEM photomicrograph of EPICOR-II phenolic cation resin sample PF8#2, showing a closeup of one cracked resin particle at 50 magnification.

Gamma-Ray Spectroscopy

During the third sampling, gamma-ray spectroacopy was used to determine the amount of radionuclides present in various aquecus samples. Significant amounts of Cs-134 and Cs-137 were detected in the soak, rinse, and decant rinse solutions. Table 6 presents the amount of Cs-134, and -137 that were found in deionized water solutions, as well as the total Cesium loading for the resin samples.

Physical Observations

Physical observations during the third sampling wore similar to those of the first and second samplings with more edvanced signs of degradation in evidence. The styrene base resins (PF-801, PF-803, end PF-20) all showed signs of stickiness and agglomeration more severe than the second sampling. Coring of the prefilters was more difficult than either previous coring with resins offering more resistance to the coring tool. Vacuum removal of samples from the cores was impeded by plugging of the vacuum entrance of the tube by resins (s new experience). Only by repeated rinsing of the wand with domineralized water was it possible to continue the process. With the resin samples in columns, flow could not be initiated for the first rinez (vecuum assist was no help). The sample, were each washed into a backer and rinsed to remove a "isible sediment. The sediment was decanted off and the resins were then returned to the columns for elution. The elution process was then performed as planned. PF-801 and PF-803 both appeared dark orange to brown in coker. The 7-year-old unirradiated resin was still a light amber color. PF-20 resin samples also had a significant change in color (mostly orange).

During coring operations, water was added to the top of each prefilter bed to aid in coring tool insertion. That water ran across the bed to enter previous cure holes rather than soak directly into the bed as would normally occur. Previous experience with EPICOR prefilters which had lower radiation doses showed that water would normally flow directly into the bed.

Synopsis of Results

Table 7 presents results of the various analytical tests performed on the irradiated EPICOR-II resin samples. It should be noted that results in the table are expressed in terms of differences in values obtained from tests on the irradiated EPICOR-II resins from the first, second, and third samplings versus the values obtained from tests on the unirradiated Epicor, Inc. supplied resins.

Table 6. Cesium measured in aqueous solutions from resins-third sampling

All Agungus Salutions	Tot	al mCi/100 mL Resin S	ample
From Resin Sample No.	<u>Cs-134</u>	<u>Cs-137</u>	Total Cs
PF-8#1	650	74,089	74,139
FF-8#2	95	11,183	11,278
PF-8#3	1141	130,242	131,383
PF-20	930	108,215	109,145

Teble 7. (continued)

			Resin St	mple	Ya MPATRA A & S Jamma and A
Analytical Technique	Sampting	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation	PT-8#2 Phenolic C-tion	PF-8#1 Seca _g Acid Cation	PT-20 Strong Acid Cation
	2	Soak and risse solutions were a brown color	Soak and sinse solutions were a brown color	Scak and rinse solutions were a brown calls:	Soak and rinse solucions were a brown color
	3	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment	Soak solution contained light brown sediment contamination with PF-8#1 resin	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment
Physical observations	•	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	No sample	Nothing unused
	2	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual
	3	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	Lack of flow during elation	Lack of flow during elution

a. Results are expressed as differences in values observed for irradiated EPICOR-II resins versus unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc.

31

in de

in a

and the

3

- Loss of effective cross-linking (which could lead to eventual release of radionuclides if degradation progressed to the total failure of the polymer structure), as shown by the increase in water retention capacity, decrease in salt-solitting capacity, and decrease in backwashed and settled density.
- Loss of functional groups (with accompanying loss of radionuclides), as indicated by the increase in sulfate concentrations in the various soak, tinse and elution solutions and loss in salt-splitting capacity.
- Resins from PF-20 showed an initial increase in TEC during the tiral sampling due to oxidation of the polymer chain before onset of degradation (Feference 3). The TEC then decreased to no change in the second sampling (Reference 4). This could be caused by loss of effective cross-linking. By the third sampling, a substantial decrease in the TEC was observed, indicating that the radiation dose had exceeded the necessary dose for extensive degradation.

100 - 1000 H

a and the second second

 All of the resins sampled are losing capacity to hold cesium, the major radionuclide found in the resin samples, as evidenced by the areaunt of cesium found in the soak and rinse softwions.

It is also concluded from analysis of the first, second, and third samplings that the following mechanisms of degradation are occurring within the EPICOR-II physiolic cation resins:

- Loss of effective cross-linking (which has led to the loss of radionuclides), this was expected due the increase in the water retention capacity aral the decrease in the backwashed and settled density. During the third sampling, the backwashed and settled density increased somewhat.
- Oxidation of the polymer chain (which would reduce the tendency to release radionuclides), caused an increase in the salt-splitting capacity in the first and second sampling. By the time of the third sampling, degradation had occurred to the point where substantial decrease in salt splitting capacity and total exchange capacity was observed.

Previous resin studies show that degradation caused by internal radiation doses will be more severe than degradation caused by external irradiation, because of introduction of the radiation into the polymer structure (References 2, 7, 12, 15 and 16). The internal dose received by the organic ion exchange resins in EPICOR-11 prefilters PF-8 and -20 has been sufficient to produce significant degradation. The degradation at the time of the first sampling was measurable. The equilibrium of the polymer structure has been shifted towards polymer breakdown; this is substantiated by results of the second and third analysis.

One important indicator of the capability of ion exchange media to retain radionuclides is total exchange capacity. The four samples examined in the INEL study exhibited different reactions to radiation in the first and second sampling. Samples PF-8#1 and PF-8#3, strong acid cation resins with the highest radiation dose, showed reduced total exchange capacity. Sample PF-8#2, the phenolic cation with a slightly lower dose, showed a decrease in the second sampling. PF-20, the strongest acid cation with the lowest dose. showed an increase in the first sampling, and dropped back to the capacity of the unirradiated resin in the second sampling. This indicates the onset of degradation that is consistent with findings of Reference 12. That sample exhibited a significant drop in exchange capacity in the third sampling. The results of the INEL study indicate that the threshold dose for the onset of degradation due to internal radiation is between 5.1 x 107 and 6.6 x 107 rads. By the time of the third sampling, all of the resin samples had demonstrated substantial decrease in the total exchange capacity. This ranged from 23% for the phenolic resin to 35% in the PF-20 strong acid cation resin. The strong acid cation resins of PF-8 had a decrease in the total exchange capacity of about 43%. These changes are graphically illustrated in Figure 12 where sample PF-20 initially increased in exchange capacity while other samples showed decreases as indicated by the negative percent change in the curves.

The radiation degradation was also seen as the loss of sulfonic acid groups in PF-8#1, PF-8#3, and PF-20 resin samples. The loss of sulfonic acid groups would lower the pH of the liquid in the surrounding ion exchange material as observed in previous samples and the third sampling (Table 6). The low-pH liquid should be neutralized by the remaining unused ion exchange material in the prefilters. That thesis is supported by the measurement of residual water pH from the 50 prefilters which were stored at the INEL. Fortysix of those prefilters have been disposed at the commercial disposal facility near Hanford, Washington, and four have been disposed in the Radioactive Waste

REFERENCES

- 1. J. W. McConnell, Jr., EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Research Plan, EGG-TMI-6198, March 1983.
- K. K. S. Pillay, Radiation Effects on Ion Exchangers Used in Radioactive Waste Management, NE/ RWM-80-3, Pennsylvania State University, October 1980.
- J. W. McConnell, Jr., and R. D. Sanders, Sr., EPICOR-II Resin Degradation Results from First Resin Samples of PF-8 and PF-20, NUREG/CR-4150, EGG-2176, May 1985.
- R. D. Sanders, Sr., and J. W. McConnell, Sr., EPICOR-II Resin Degradation Results from Second Sampling of PF-8 and PF-20, NUREG/CR-4608, EGG-2452, October 1986.
- 5. Program Plan of the EPICOR and Waste and Disposition Program, EGG-TMI-6521, Revised December 1983.
- J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. S. Lynch, and M. J. Tyacke, Commercial Disposal of High Integrity Containers (HICs) Containing EPICOR-II Prefilters from Three Mile Island, GEND-048, September 1985.
- K. J. Swyler, C. J. Dodge, R. Dayal, Irradiation Effects on the Storage and Disposal of Radwaste Comaining Organic Ion-Exchange Media, NUREG/CR-3383, BNL-NUREG-51691, October 1983.
- J. D. Doyle, J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. D. Sanders, St., EPICOR-II Resin Characterization and Proposed Methods for Degradation Analysis, EGG-TMI-6489, Rev. 1, June 1984.
- 9. H. W. Reno, J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. C. Schmitt. EPICOR-II Research and Disposition Program: FY-1983 Annual Report, EGG-2287, April 1984.
- L. D. Koeppen and J. W. Rogers, TMI EPICOR-II Resin Core Samples PF-8 and PF-20, RE-PB-048-83, EG&G Idaho, Inc., November 1983.
- 11. ASTM D2187-77, Standard Test Methods for Physical and Chemical Properties of Particulate Ion-Exchange Resins, 31.
- T. E. Gangwer, M. Goldstein, and K. K. S. Pillay, Radiation Effects on Ion Exchange Material, BNL-50781, April 1978.
- 13. N. L. Wynhoff and V. Pasupathi, Characterization of EPICOR-II Prefilter Liner 3, GEND-027, April 1982.
- 14. J. D. Yesso, V. Pasupathi, L. Lowery, Characterization of EPICOR-II Prefilter Liner 16, GEND-015, August 1983.
- 15. T. E. Gangwer and K. K. S. Pillay, Radioactive Loading of Ion Exchange Materials: Radiation Related Areas of Concern, BNL-NUREG-28647, October 1980.
- R. E. Barletta, K. J. Swyler, S. F. Chan, R. E. Davis, Solidification of Irradiated EPICOR-II Waste Products, NUREG/CR 2969, BNL-NUREG-51590, May 1983.
- K. Swyler, R. E. Barletta, R. E. Davis, Review of Recent Studies of the Radiation Induced Behavior of Ion Exchange Media, BNL-NUREG-28682, November 1980.
- 18. United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Technical Position on Waste Form, May 11, 1983.

Gamma-Ray Spectroscopy

During the third sampling, gamma-ray spectroscopy was used to determine the amount of radionuclides present in various aqueous samples. Significant amounts of Ca-134 and Ca-137 were detected in the soak, rinse, and decast rinse solutions. Table 6 presents the amount of Ca-134, and -137 that were found in doionized water zolutions, as well as the total Cesium loading for the regin samples.

Physical Observations

Physical observations during the third sampling were similar to those of the first and second samplings with more advanced signs of degradation in evidence. The styrene base resins (PF-8#1, PF-8#3, and PF-20) all showed signs of stickiness and agglomeration more severe than the second sampling. Coring of the prefilters was more difficult than either previous coring with resins offering more resistance to the coring tool. Vacuum removal of samples from the cores was impeded by plugging of the vacuum entrance of the tube by resins (a new experience). Only by repeated rinsing of the wand with domineralized water was it possible to continue the process. With the resin samples in columns, flow could not be initiated for the first rinse (vacuum assist was no help). The samples were each washed into a beaker and rinsed to remove a visible sediment. The sediment was decanted off and the reains were then seturned to the columns for elution. The elution process was then performed as planned. PF-8#1 and PF-8#3 both appeared dark orange to browth in color. The 7-year-old unirradiated resin was still a light amber color. PF-20 resin samples also had a significant change in color (mostly orange).

During coring operations, water was added to the top of each prefilter bed to aid in coring tool insertion. That water ran across the bed to enter previous core holes rather than soak directly into the bed as would normally occur. Previous experience with EPICOR prefilters which had lower radiation doses showed that water would normally flow directly into the bed.

Synopsis of Results

Table 7 presents results of the various analytical tests performed on the irradiated EPICOR-II resin samples. It should be noted that results in the table are expressed in terms of differences in values obtained from tests on the irradiated EPICOR-II resins from the first, second, and third samplings versus the values obtained from tests on the unirradiated Epicor, Inc. supplied resins.

Table 6. Cesium measured in aqueous solutions from resins-third sampling

All Agusous Colucions	Tot	al mCi/100 mL Resin Sa	mple
From Resin Sample 140.	<u>Cs-134</u>	<u>Cs-137</u>	Total Cs
PF-8#1	650	74,089	74,139
PF8#2	95	11,183	11,278
PF-8#3	1141	130,242	131,383
PF-20	930	108,215	109,145

Table 7.	Synopsis of results from analysis of EPICOR-	II irradiated resin samples PF-8#1, PF-8#2,	PF-8#3, and PF-20 from the first, second, and third
	samplings ⁹		

			Resin San	nple	
Analytical Technique	Sampling	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation	PF-8#2 Phenolic Cation	PF-8#3 5 rong Acid Cation	PF-20 Strong Acid Cation
ASTM Tests					
Water retention capacity Backwashed and settled density Salt-splitting capacity	1, 2, 3 1, 2, 3 1, 2, 3	Incr/Incr/Incr Decr/Decr/Decr Decr/Decr/Decr	Incr/Incr/Incr Decr/Decr/Decr Incr/Incr/Decr	No sample/incr/incr No sample/Decr/incr No sample/Decr/Decr	Incr/Incr/Incr Decr/Decr/Incr Decr/No change/Decr Incr/No change/Decr
Total exchange capacity	1,2,3	Decr/Decr/Decr	No change/Decr/Decr	No sample/Deci/Deci	inci/140 change/occi
Infrared spectroscopy	1,2	No apparent changes in structure	No apparent changes in structure	No apparent changes in structure	No apparent changes in structure
Gas, Liquid and Supercritical Fluid Chromatography	1, 2, 3	No soluble products determined	No soluble products determined	No soluble products determined	No soluble products determined
BaCl ₂ precipitation for sulfonic acid groups	1,2	Sulfonic acid groups are being lost	This resin contains no sulfonic acid	Sulfonic acid groups are being lost	Sulfonic acid group: are being lost
Induction Coupled Plasma – Atomic Emission Spectroscopy	3	Sulfonic acid groups are being lost	Some sulfonic acid groups found	Sulfonic acid groups are being lost	Sulfonic acid groups are being lost
Scanning electron microscopy Observations	i	Resin bead cracking	Damage on a few particles	No sample	No damage noted
	2	Resin bead cracking	No damage noted	Resin bead cracking	No damage noted
	3	Resin bead cracking	Damage on one particle	Resin bead cracking	Damage to one bead
Visual observations	1	Nothing unusual	Contamination with	No sample	Nothing unusual

*

Table 7. (continued)

	<u></u>	Resin Sa	mple	
Sampling	PF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation	PF-8#2 Phenolic Cation	PF-8#3 Strong Acid Cation	PF-20 Strong Acid Cation
2	Soak and rinse solutions were a brown color	Soak and rinse solutions were a brown color	Soak and rinse solutions were a brown color	Soak and rinse solutions were a brown color
3	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment	Soak solution contained light brown sediment contamination with PF-8#1 resin	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment	Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color with sediment
1	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	No sample	Nothing unesual
2	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual
3	Lack of flow during elution	Nothing unusual	Lack of flow during elution	Lack of flow during elution
	Sampling 2 3 1 2 3	SamplingPF-8#1 Strong Acid Cation2Soak and rinse solutions were a brown color3Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color3Soak and rinse solutions were light brown color1Lack of flow during elution2Lack of flow during elution3Lack of flow during elution	PF-8#1 SamplingPF-8#1 Strong Acid CationPF-8#2 Phenolic Cation2Soak and rinse solutions were a brown colorSoak and rinse solutions were a brown colorSoak and rinse solutions were a brown color3Soak and rinse solutions were light brown colorSoak solution contained light brown sediment contamination with PF-8#1 resin1Lack of flow during elutionNothing unusual2Lack of flow during elutionNothing unusual	PF-8#1 SamplingPF-8#1 Strong Acid CationPF-8#2 Phenolic CationPF-8#3 Strong Acid Cation2Soak and rinse solutions were a brown colorSoak and rinse solutions were a brown colorSoak and rinse solutions were a brown color3Soak and rinse solutions were light brown colorSoak solution solutions were ight brown colorSoak and rinse solutions were ight brown color1Lack of flow during elutionNothing unusual Uning elutionNo sample2Lack of flow during elutionNothing unusual Lack of flow during elutionLack of flow during elution

a. Results are expressed as differences in values observed for irradiated EPICOR-II resins versus unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc.

DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSIONS

Several important studies of ion exchange resins have been conducted, including research by Battelle Columbus Laboratory (BCL)^{13,14} Brookhaven National Laboratory (BNL),^{7,12,15,16} and the Idaho National Engineering Laboratory (INEL) (References 3 and 4). The BCL work covered characterization of EPICOR-II prefilters PF-3 and -16; the BNL research included radiation effects on ion exchange resins. A more complete discussion of the findings of those researchers is presented in Reference 3 and a discussion comparing BCL and BNL results with those obtained at INEL is given below. This section also compares the results from the first and second sampling of EPICOR resins PF-8 and -20 with the results of the third sampling.

The results obtained by BNL and BCL agree with the findings of the INEL research of EPICOR-II prefilters. The following items were found during the BNL and BCL research which specifically relate to the INEL work:

- Most cation resins show significant degradation only after they have received a radiation dose greater than 10⁸ rad.
- The primary effects of radiation on ion exchange resins are degradation by loss of effective cross-linking of the macromolecular structure, along with scission of ion exchange functional groups.
- The exchange capacity of ion exchange resins, in general, decreases with increasing r, diation dose.
- In cation ion exchangers, initially there is an increase in functional groups capable of exchange, as a result of radiation in the presence of air or moisture, Those are phenolic and carboxyl groups produced as a result of oxidation.
- The initial increase in exchange sites tends to increase the total exchange capacity (TEC) of the resin. However, the accompanying scission of existing exchange groups often result in a net decrease in TEC values.
- In general, the salt forms of ion exchange resins are more resistant to radiation than the H⁺ or OH⁻ forms.

- Prolonged exposure of ion exchange resins to radiation inflowing (dynamic) systems causes more drastic changes in their physical and chemical properties than ion exchange resins irradiated in a static system.
- Radiation-caused chemical changes in ion exchange resins are a direct function of the total radiation dose absorbed by the resin.

INEL findings correlate with findings of other researchers; 2.7, 12, 15, 16, 17 however, degradation has been identified in the EPICOR-II resins at a lower total integrated radiation dose than observed previously (6 x 10^7 versus 10^8 rad) (References 2, 3, and 4).

The first and second samplings confirm that degradation in the PF-8 and -20 strong acid cation resins has occurred. The onset of degradation has also been confirmed in the phenolic cation resins of PF-8. The INEL study has shown that degradation is occurring at a lower total dose than was reported in earlier studies.2.7.12 The physical observations noted during the third sampling of the cores are comparable with those observed during the first and second samplings (i.e., lack of flow during initial elution of the strong acid cation resins). By the time of the third sampling, no flow through the columns of resin was obtainable by normal gravity means, and the resins had to be rinsed in a beaker to remove the visible sediment on the top of the column. The sediment was decanted off and the resins were returned to their ion exchange columns for elution. That process was successfully completed on each resin sample.

The soak and rinse solutions from the initial elution of the second and third sampling had a brown discoloration (indicating resin degradation). These are the same effects observed in resins of similar types when exposed to light for prolonged periods of time (particularly ultra violet light). The same solutions during the first sampling were colorless. It has been found (Reference 17) that the color of the soak solution from irradiated resins changes from pale yellow to deep amber as the radiation dose increases. That change is consistent with the analytical results from the first, second, and third sampling. Also, the first, second, and third samplings showed a pH of less than 3.0.

It is concluded from analysis of the first, second, and third samplings that the following mechanisms of degradation are occurring within the EPICOR-II strong acid cation resins:

- Loss of effective cross-linking (which could lead to eventual release of radionuclides if degradation progressed to the total failure of the polymer structure), as shown by the increase in water retention capacity, decrease in salt-splitting capacity, and decrease in backwashed and settled density.
- Loss of functional groups (with accompanying loss of radionuclides), as indicated by the increase in sulfate concentrations in the various soak, rinse and elution solutions and loss in salt-splitting capacity.
- Resins from PF-20 showed an initial increase in TEC during the first sampling due to oxidation of the polymer chain before onset of degradation (Reference 3). The TEC then decreased to no change in the second sampling (Reference 4). This could be caused by loss of effective cross-linking. By the third sampling, a substantial decrease in the TEC was observed, indicating that the radiation dose had exceeded the necessary dose for extensive degradation.
- All of the resins sampled are losing capacity to hold cesium, the major radionuclide found in the resin samples, as evidenced by the amount of cesium found in the soak and rinse solutions.

It is also concluded from analysis of the first, second, and third samplings that the following mechanisms of degradation are occurring within the EPICOR-II phenolic cation resins:

- Loss of effective cross-linking (which has led to the loss of radionuclides), this was expected due the increase in the water retention capacity and the decrease in the backwashed and settled density. During the third sampling, the backwashed and settled density increased somewhat.
- Oxidation of the polymer chain (which would reduce the tendency to release radionuclides), caused an increase in the salt-splitting capacity in the first and second sampling. By the time of the third sampling, degradation had occurred to the point where substantial decrease in salt splitting capacity and total exchange capacity was observed.

Previous resin studies show that degradation caused by internal radiation doses will be more severe than degradation caused by external irradiation, because of introduction of the radiation into the polymer structure (References 2, 7, 12, 15 and 16). The internal dose received by the organic ion exchange resins in EPICOR-11 prefilters PF-8 and -20 has been sufficient to produce significant degradation. The degradation at the time of the first sampling was measurable. The equilibrium of the polymer structure has been shifted towards polymer breakdown, this is substantiated by results of the second and third analysis.

One important indicator of the capability of ion exchange media to retain radionuclides is total exchange capacity. The four samples examined in the INEL study exhibited different reactions to radiation in the first and second sampling. Samples PF-8#1 and PF-8#3, strong acid cation resins with the highest radiation dose, showed reduced total exchange capacity. Sample PF-8#2, the phenolic cation with a slightly lower dose, showed a decrease in the second sampling. PF-20, the strongest acid cation with the lowest dose. showed an increase in the first sampling, and dropped back to the capacity of the unirradiated resin in the second sampling. This indicates the onset of degradation that is consistent with findings of Reference 12. That sample exhibited a significant drop in exchange capacity in the third sampling. The results of the INEL study indicate that the threshold dose for the onset of degradation due to internal radiation is between 5.1 x 107 and 6.6 x 107 rads. By the time of the third sampling, all of the resin samples had demonstrated substantial decrease in the total exchange capacity. This ranged from 23% for the phenolic resin to 35% in the PF-20 strong acid cation resin. The strong acid cation resins of PF-8 had a decrease in the total exchange capacity of about 43%. These changes are graphically illustrated in Figure 12 where sample PF-20 initially increased in exchange capacity while other samples showed decreases as indicated by the negative percent change in the curves.

The radiation degradation was also seen as the loss of sulfonic acid groups in PF--8#1, PF--8#3, and PF-20 resin samples. The loss of sulfonic acid groups would lower the pH of the liquid in the surrounding ion exchange material as observed in previous samples and the third sampling (Table 6). The low-pH liquid should be neutralized by the remaining unused ion exchange material in the prefilters. That thesis is supported by the measurement of residual water pH from the 50 prefilters which were stored at the INEL. Fortysix of those prefilters have been disposed at the commercial disposal facility near Hanford, Washington, and four have been disposed in the Radioactive Waste Management Complex at the INEL. The pH measurements of residual water obtained more than three years after the prefilters were used were in the range of about 5 to 8 as compared to less than 3 for soak and rinse solutions from resin samples. Those pH readings indicate that the acidic solution was being modified as it passed through the cation and mixed bed resins in the lower regions of the prefilters.

A threshold dose for degradation in EPICOR-II ion exchange resins has been identified by this work to be below $6 \ge 10^7$ rads. That value is somewhat less than in the 10^8 -rad accumulated dose limit recommended in the Technical Position on Waste Form.¹⁸ The resin properties, which have changed due to degradation, such as those examined by the ASTM methods, exhibit small changes (10% or less, as seen in Tables 3 and 4) at the threshold dose; while higher doses (10^8 rad and above) have produced more pronounced property changes.^{2,15,16} It can also be seen from the information in Tables 3 and 4 that different resins react differently at a similar dose (comparing styrene to phenolic base resin).

The results produced in this study show that EPICOR resins definitely began losing radionuclides below 108 rads total radiation dose. But the release of a nuclide by an exchange site does not ensure that the nuclide will be released by the exchanger to the environment. The nuclide could be picked up on another site or held by the agglomerated resins. The first would be a temporary condition until a higher dose is reached, but does delay the ultimate release of the nuclide. The second would be more permanent and would not easily release the nuclide. Such processes are probably occurring within the EPICOR-II prefilters. The ion exchange process is made possible by the fact that ion exchangers are operated below the point where a predetermined level of radionuclides begins appearing in the effluent (exchanger breakthrough). That process results in a number of free sites in the exchangers being available for recapture of any loose radionuclides.

Both ion exchange recapture and retention by the gelatinous agglomerated resin mass will effectively hold the released radionuclides. It was positively shown during column elution attempts in both this study and the one conducted in Reference 2, that water flow could not be initiated through the degraded ion exchange beds and thus no nuclides elution or subsequent movement could take place. In this study, only batch rinsing resulted in nuclide releases where agglomerated resins predominated. The graphs of Figures 2 and 3 present gamma dose with bed location. These curves have remained essentially unchanged for shape and location within the prefilter over the three samplings, which indicates that the gamma-emitting radionuclides are not moving despite addition of water during coring operations.

These analyses have assisted in determining the extent to which organic ion exchangers are degraded by internal radiation under conditions representative of actual use and storage. Degradation of the resins has been related directly to total integrated radiation dose. This has aided in identifying the effects of degradation on release of radionuclides from the ion exchange media. The resin bed in the higher radiation zone is being converted to an agglomerated mass, a substance with unique new nuclide retention capabilities. It has been shown that the contained radionuclides remain within the ion exchange bed. The acceptability of EPICOR-II prefilters for disposal in high integrity containers at a commercial disposal site is thus confirmed.

No further examinations were planned for PF-8 and -20 resins and all sample materials and those prefilters have been disposed. However, the authors recommend that certain other studies of ion exchange resins be undertaken to examine aspects of resins degradation not included in the work discussed in this report. This study was restricted to only two types of strong acid cation resins, those with styrene and phenolic structures. Studies should be performed on degradation of newer acrylic and styrene structured resins, both cation and anion, now used in nuclear power stations with internally and externally irradiated samples having various radiation doses applied to samples of each resin type. The conduct of tests within the proper test matrix would provide data for determining thresholds of degradation for those resins. Laboratory scale leaching of those irradiated resins could be used to further identify the part that bed agglomeration plays in retaining radionuclides. Resins would be loaded with such commonly encountered radionuclides as Cs-137 and Co-60 to facilitate the study of nuclide retention.

An important aspect of irradiation degradation of resins is gas generation, which occurs during that irradiation. In particular the generation of hydrocarbons from the degradation of resins is information that can be used in planning for and regulating the disposal of long-term storage of ion exchange resins. The studies of resin degradation could also incorporate measurement of gas generation caused by irradiation.

REFERENCES

- 1. J. W. McConnell, Jr., EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Research Plan, EGG-TMI-6198, March 1983.
- K. K. S. Pillay, Radiation Effects on Ion Exchangers Used in Radioactive Waste Management, NE/ RWM-80-3, Pennsylvania State University, October 1980.
- J. W. McConnell, Jr., and R. D. Sanders, Sr., EPICOR-II Resin Degradation Results from First Resin Samples of PF-8 and PF-20, NUREG/CR-4150, EGG-2176, May 1985.
- R. D. Sanders, Sr., and J. W. McConnell, St., EPICOR-II Resin Degradation Results from Second Sampling of PF-8 and PF-20, NUREG/CR-4608, EGG-2452, October 1986.
- Program Plan of the EPICOR and Waste and Disposition Program. EGG-TM1-6521, Revised December 1983.
- J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. S. Lynch, and M. J. Tyacke, Commercial Disposal of High Integrity Containers (HICs) Containing EFICOR-II Prefilters from Three Mile Island, GEND-048, September 1985.
- K. J. Swyler, C. J. Dodge, R. Dayal, Irradiation Effects on the Storage and Disposal of Radwaste Containing Organic Ion-Exchange Media, NUREG/CR-3383, BNL-NUREG-51691, October 1983.
- 8. J. D. Doyle, J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. D. Sanders, Sr., EPICOR-II Resin Characterization and Proposed Methods for Degradation Analysis, EGG-TMI-6489, Rev. 1, June 1984.
- 9. H. W. Reno, J. W. McConnell, Jr., R. C. Schmitt, EPICOR-II Research and Disposition Program: FY-1983 Annual Report, EGG-2287, April 1984.
- L. D. Koeppen and J. W. Rogers, TMI EPICOR-II Resin Core Samples PF-8 and PF-20, RE-PB-048-83, EG&G Idaho, Inc., November 1983.
- 11. ASTM D2187-77, Standard Test Methods for Physical and Chemical Properties of Particulate Ion-Exchange Resins, 31.
- 12. T. E. Gangwer, M. Goldstein, and K. K. S. Pillay, Radiation Effects on Ion Exchange Material, BNL-50781, April 1978.
- 13. N. L. Wynhoff and V. Pasupathi, Characterization of EPICOR-II Prefilter Liner 3, GEND-027, April 1982.
- J. D. Yesso, V. Pasupathi, L. Lowery, Characterization of EPICOR-II Prefilter Liner 16, GEND-015, August 1983.
- 15. T. E. Gangwer and K. K. S. Pillay, Radioactive Loading of Ion Exchange Materials: Radiation Related Areas of Concern, BNL-NUREG-28647, October 1980.
- R. E. Barletta, K. J. Swyler, S. F. Chan, R. E. Davis, Solidification of Irradiated EPICOR-II Waste Products, NUREG/CR 2969, BNL-NUREG-51590, May 1983.
- 17. K. Swyler, R. E. Barletta, R. E. Davis, Review of Recent Studies of the Radiation Induced Behavior of Ion Exchange Media, BNL-NUREG-28682, November 1980.
- 18. United States Nuclear Regulatory Commission, Technical Position on Waste Form, May 11, 1983.

ISee instructions on the reverse!	MISSION I. REPORT NUMBER I Auspied by NRC. Add Vol., Supp., Her., and Addindum Numbers, II and NUREG/CR-5594 EGG-2603
Radiation Degradation In EPICOR-II Ion Exchange Resins, Final Report	3. DATE REPORT PUBLISHED
	4. FIN OR GRANT NUMBER
AUTHORISI	6. TYPE OF REPORT
J. W. McConnell, Jr. D. A. Johnson R. D. Sanders, Sr.	Technical 7. PERIOD COVERED HADAVE Dates
PERFORMING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS III NRC. provide Division. DITY + or Region. U.S. Nuclear Renu nome and mailing address.	arory Commission, and mailing address; If contractor, pro-
Idaho National Engineering Laboratory EG&G Idaho, Inc. P.O. Box 1625 Idaho Falls, Idaho 83415 SPONSORING ORGANIZATION - NAME AND ADDRESS (II NRC. type "Same as above ") If contractor, provide NRC Div and maining address.)	vion, Office or Region, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commissio
Division of Engineering Office of Nuclear Regulatory Research U. S. Regulatory Commission Washington, D.C. 20555	
A SUFFLEMENTART NOTES	
ABSTRACT 1200 words or (au)	
1. ABSTRACT 1200 warm or and The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigat funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilters were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclear after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determin degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho ind analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of issults also are
The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigat funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilters were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclear after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determin degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho and analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of issuits also are
ABSTRACT 1200 ++rep or aut The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigat funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilter were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclear after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determind degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re- compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho and analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of esults also are
ABSTRACT (200 with or out) The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigat funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilter were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclean after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determin degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho ind analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of esults also are 12. AVAILABILITY STATEMEN Unlimited 14. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION The Page Unclassified
ABSTRACT (200 - even or au) The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR-II Resin/Liner Investigat funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR-II prefilter were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclean after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EG&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determind degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re- compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho and analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of soults also are 12. AVAILABILITY STATEMEN Unlimited 14. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION (Thu Reo Unclassified
ABSTRACT (200 worm or mu) The Low-Level Waste Data Base Development—EPICOR—II Resin/Liner Investigan funded by the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission is investigating chemical and pl conditions for organic ion exchange resins contained in several EPICOR—II prefilter were used during cleanup of contaminated water from the Three Mile Island Nuclean after the March, 1979 accident. The work was performed by EQ&G Idaho, Inc. at the Engineering Laboratory. This is the final report of this task and summarizes results a samplings of ion exchange resins from prefilters PF-8 and -20. Results are compare data from tests performed on unirradiated resins supplied by Epicor, Inc. to determin degradation due to the high internal radiation dose received by the organic resins. Re compared with those of other researchers.	tion Program hysical s. Those prefilters r Power Station e Idaho and analyses of three d with baseline is the extent of issults also are 12. AVAIL BILLTY STATEMEN Unlimited 14. SECURITY CLASSIFICATION (This Res Unclassified (This Res Of Pages)

UNITED STATES NUCLEAR REGULATORY COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20555

OFFICIAL BUSINESS PENALTY FOR PRIVATE USE. \$300

> 120555139531 1 1AN1RW US NRC-OADM DIV FOIA & PUBLICATIONS SVCS TPS PDR-NUREG P-223 WASHINGTON DC 20555

SPECIAL POURTH CLASS RATE POSTAGE & FRES PAID USNRC PERMIT No G 47 NUREC/CR-5594

SEPTEMBER 1990